OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGET & PROPERTY COMMITTEE
WORK SESSION

Saturday, December 8, 2007
SAU OFFICE
8:30 AM

MINUTES

Attendees: Richard Bergeron, Don Johnson, Marian Alese, Linda Potter,
Stewart Brock, Arthur Knight, Mary Loftis, Butch Estey, Craig Hicks,
Gail Cromwell, Tom Welden, Mary Allen, Ray Cote, Dan Harper,
Beverly Bacon, Bart Goodeve, Deb Lesure, Sue Copley, Dick
Dunning, Gib West, Matthew Hale, Maggie Picard, Colleen Roy

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at 8:37 am.

Dan Harper moved to enter into non-public session in accordance with
RSA91-A:3,lic at 8:37 a.m. for matters of negotiations.

Beverly Bacon moved to seal the minutes of non-public session at 8:56
a.m. Bart Goodeve second. Unanimous.

Dick Bergeron expressed sincere thanks and appreciation to all of the
Administrators for their work on the budget. Debate and prioritization took place.
He said that the final budget and document should be reasonable and defensible.

Marian Alese referenced a copy of the ConVal School District Budget
Development Process (See attachment #1). Marian said that in July 06/07
expenditures were being finalized so that when tax rates were determined, any
unfunded reserve balance would be applied to the next year. She said that
administrators were asked to begin the budget process with a @Gbase. Within
the budget are the results of that review. Staffing models will be proposed while
still considering others. Marian said that Special Education models will be looked
at. During the month of October, Administrators were met with, and a proposed
budget was developed. While all of this was going on, facilities management,
transportation, and other support services reviews were being conducted.
Significant changes were made throughout the district in order to realize
significant energy savings. Marian said that we have developed a Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP) to include curriculum, program and technology needs.
Member towns were asked to provide their CIP as well.

Marian said that what is being presented today is the result of a uniquely
collaborative effort.



Marian referenced the handout titled'G‘Budget SummaryO (See Attachment #2)
and Budget Session Talking PointsO

Dick said that the Aramark contract is complex. He said that we should make
sure that when we get to withdrawal with Aramark that the Board is aware of
software issues.

Bart said that he is going to want to understand the alternatives to the Arts
Enrichment Program.

Marian next referenced the binder at each Board members station. She outlined
the contents of the binder.

Marian said that she would prefer to not place each version on the website.
Members should request a copy if they wish.

Marian said that she would talk to Ken Campbell to learn how to place it on the
web as a hidden link.

Gail Cromwell distributed Attachment #3 (Census: NH can catch its breath)

Dick referenced Evolving GBS/AES K-8 Campus Plan (See Attachment #4)

If SMS and GBS are comparable, we looked at staffing without negatively
impacting programming. Dick said that we have great technology staffing at
GBS. It was felt that they could be responsible for AES as well.

With this number of students, it is acceptable to have one nurse on staff. The
reduction of specialists has not been connected to the declining enrollment.
There are some efficiencies to be found. Dick understood that there was
resistance to change. Currently AES and GBS are two separate organizations
and the culture would change when combining them. Many positions would be
aligned with K-8 responsibilities.

Mary Loftis said that with enroliment being approximately the same how would
the nurse handle the medical demands.

Dick explained that having two nurses is wonderful in terms of services but one
nurse could handle the demand.

Bart asked what the positives and negatives would be in combining campuses.
Dick said it would allow enrichment opportunities and instructional opportunities
to exist and students could act as roll models. Parent participation could
increase. The positives for potential opportunity exist.

Dick said that this would be a brand new organization. We would have to coach
people to see the opportunities. The obligations of the problems as an
Administrator would range from K through 8 and be very different. The
opportunities would out weigh the difficulties.

Dan Harper said that the nurse would require additional training to deal with
students that they have not dealt with in the past. Dan said that he uses the
nurse as an example only. Dick said that we would absolutely pledge to provide
professional development opportunities.

Dan suggested that with the consideration of consolidating classrooms that a
@oad-showQrakes place with parents.



Ray Cote asked for examples of the conversation when considering having only
one nurse at the proposed @ampusO
Dick said that currently, the nurses at both AES and GBS are very active. The
current medical needs could be met with one nurse. Dick said that differences of
opinion do exist.
Marian provided a history in the district of how nursing coverage was provided in
the district in the past.
Mary Allen asked how technology and PE is currently staffed.
Dick said that a stipend position exists in the buildings. He said that it is person
specific. At AES we have the stipend opportunity in the building. At GBS we
have two full-time staff in the building
Dick felt that AES would immediately benefit.
Marian said that SMS has two support persons in the building. The idea is that
two positions could support the population.
Dick said that PE is different in both GBS and SMS. We are not looking to
dictate that the programs should be identical. We ask if it is reasonable for PE
opportunities to exist with a reduction in staff. Dick said that he believes so.
Marian said that this proposal was not made in isolation. Principals were present
in the discussion process. This is how we got where we are today. Much
thought went into this discussion and proposal.
Gail Cromwell said that we have to realize that the problems we have are going
to continue. She said that the enrollments are going to continue to decline. (See
distributed a handout titled @ensus: NH can catch its breathO
Arthur Knight asked if thought had been given to reducing staff at the SAU level.
Dick said that it is coming.
Stewart asked what the proposed Administration team would look like. How
would the structure of meetings look in Administration meetings with K-12.
Dick said that we have three different Administration models to look at. The
lower school administration would have an AES specific meeting as well as GBS
while remembering that we are a K-8 school. Dick said that Gib is faced with a
difficult situation. We don®know the administrators who would be put in place.
Coaching and professional development opportunities would be necessary.
Three models

¥ Principal K-8

¥ Asst. Prin at AES

¥ Principal and Asst. Principal + one other Asst. during transition time.

Gib West said that with a population of this size, there needs to be a lot of
conversation about defining position and turf. We are looking at various
paradigms when considering meeting the needs of students.

Mary Allen wondered if it was possible to do part of what is suggested,
consolidate the nurse, PE and Tech and hold off on the rest. She asked if we
have to look at changing the Administration in the upcoming year.

Dick said that it is a comprehensive model. He would be in favor of looking at it
as an integrated proposal.

Gail asked Mary why her reluctance in moving forward. Mary replied that it
should be taken to the community. There is a real argument about consolidation



to be made. She said that it is interesting and exciting. She would like to move
forward with it but would like more time.

Gail said that she sees it as an opportunity to move forward positively. She
asked about the other elementary schools that feed into GBS. Dick said that
other plans exist that are not ready to be shared. We are looking at the entire
administration in the district.

Mary Loftis expressed support for the concept. The physical proximity makes
this possible. This is a unique opportunity.

Dick said enroliment decline and efficiencies exist. This must be looked at now
rather than in September. It will be in motion.

Craig said that PES used to be K-12. He regrets that the kids are split. Thisis a
fault that we have made. Students used to be as one and now feel separate. He
liked the new proposed model.

Butch Estey asked Dick if he thought about having an Assistant Principal in each
school and bringing in an experienced K-8 Principal. Dick said that they had.

He added that we are not looking to go outside of the district to hire new
administrators but rather recognize the loyalty of those in the district.

Dick said that teachers are going to need to be taught and encouraged to think
on a K-8 level.

Linda Potter referenced the Proposal for Third, District Run Integrated Preschool
Program. (See Attachment #5)

She said that children are increasingly being identified with Autism.

Twenty-four students are currently identified with 8 in the process. She said that
we have 4 identified in Preschool with 2 more possible. Linda said that this
disability requires intense early intervention. The goals are listed in the handout.
A third program is desired. The proposed destination is at AES. Staff is in place
and could easily work with the new program. Additional training would be
provided. The program would provide a better continuum.

Linda is asking that this request be considered.

Gail asked what the $18,000 represents on the last page. Linda said that it
would bring students back into district.

Stewart asked how many students the $18,000 represents.

Linda said that some of the students currently on the spectrum would be brought
into this program.

Arthur Knight asked if the first goal listed is currently being met now. Linda said
that it was through grant funding. Marian explained that seed money is given
and that the expectation is that the program would be funded in the future.

Mary Allen asked if thought was given to moving the program to the geographic
core.
Linda Potter said that space requirements are an obstacle.

Tom Welden asked if it was roughly $100,000 for six students. Linda Potter
confirmed.

Tom further asked if the functioning level of the six students warranted two staff
members. Linda explained the differences in levels of autism.



Marian said that a program such as this does not exist in this area. There is a
need. There is potential for additional revenues given our surrounding districts.
This has not been explored.

Craig Hicks said that he would rather spend the money in the beginning rather
than all along. Perhaps the students will be a little better off when we get them in
Kindergarten. It is worth trying to improve the quality of the student.

Butch Estey asked if people were in place currently. Linda confirmed. Butch
asked what Linda was asking for. Linda said that she was asking for new staff.
Mary Loftis agreed that this was a real need to be addressed early on. She
asked how students are helped at different grade levels. Linda said that some
are fully integrated into the classroom, some through life skills and some with
aides.

Linda explained that we have two programs funded through grants.

Arthur said that one thing to consider are the potential for families to move here
that would become our responsibility.

Ray Cote said that it would be useful to know what other programs we have that
produce revenue. We could use it as an estimate for this program.

Bart said that he doesn®believe that we make any money on such programs.
Marian said that we receive money to offset the program. Bart said that we
should know what the net effect is. He also asked what the out placement
opportunities are for such program. Linda said that our preschools are it, aside
from programs in Massachusetts. Crotched Mountain is just beginning a
program. There is no place for us to send our students.

Bart asked what surrounding districts are doing. Linda said that they are doing
much the same as we are doing here.

Linda said that projections are that 8-14 students are expected to be coming into
school per year.

Dick said that this request comes because it is a growing population. We are not
looking at an organizational shift.

Linda said that we have a preschool consultant that visits the various programs
that students are in. The programs are good but not to the intensity that they
require for students to progress much quicker.

Butch Estey said that we could have five families come in with additional
students with such needs. Linda said that she can®predict how many might
move in. We would have to meet their needs because we are required by law.
Dick said that with this growing population we are losing our opportunities for our
students who are currently here.

Stewart said that early intervention pays off in many ways and he would like to
understand what the costs up front vs. the costs years out are.

Linda said that there is data available but that she was unsure how well
researched out it was.

Ray said that he wanted to look at hard numbers. Ray said that the projected
numbers reflect that we have over eight times the numbers that data Linda
provides for Autism.

Craig said that if we try to do something early, it is a safe assumption to expect
that it will pay off later on.

Tom Welden said that autism has a higher discovery rate of identification that
would not have otherwise been identified. It skews the numbers.



Dan Harper said that when he attends graduation and he sees a Special Ed
student graduating that it is a great feeling.

Bart said that we need to recognize that we will need a philosophy moving
forward. We need to be prepared for when we don®have six students but rather
two or seven, what we are going to do.

Tom asked Dick what he wanted the Board to do. Dick said that this is for
consideration only at this point.

Marian next provided a PowerPoint Presentation (See attachment #6 and 6A
titted ConVal School District B Proposed Budget)

A healthy conversation took place about the various object codes.

Gail asked that line 110 be broken down.

Tom said that we should be building in assumptions. He asked for two different
sets reflected.

Beverly asked when it would be appropriate to discuss the details of the
reduction in staff. Dick said that it will come later in the meeting.

Gail said that when looking at the list of workshops and professional
development opportunities, we do not channel staff in any direction. Dick said
that prior approval must be received before taking any workshop.

Gail asked why we don®offer multi-age workshops in house.

Linda said that all teachers have staff development plans and ETGAP plans. We
cannot direct what they should take other than what is in their plans. It is two
separate accounts.

Gail said that when looking at the list of what teachers do, the do not have benefit
to our district. For example, many have taken Grief Counseling for Children.

She asked why we couldn®offer a one-time workshop for such a need. Dick said
that he agreed, it seemed an efficiency question.

Marian next referenced the Facilities Management Contract.(See attachment # 7
and #8) The proposal includes two individuals who have stepped into a more
supervisory role. Marian included equipment in the proposal, software and
chemicals. In addition, the current maintenance budget is being reviewed to
prioritize.

Lastly, Marian said that it might be a better investment to consider hiring an
HVAC person for the district. The cost would be more than the contract but the
benefits would be worthwhile when considering web monitoring of the buildings.
They could take care of refrigeration needs as well.

Gail asked if we didn®already have an HVAC person on board. Marian said that
we have people doing some of this work but they are not licensed. Galil said that
we should consider upgrading one person. Marian said that we do not want to
take from Peter to pay Paul.

Gib asked Marian that given that we have local companies around ours that we
might joint contract with for HYAC support. Marian said that we have had similar
discussions.

Mary Allen said that this is a position that could pay back with energy savings.
The temperature inadequacies from one location to the next would support this
position.



Marian said that the relationship that we had with Aramark and School Dude
allow us to get into the position that we can take over our own maintenance. She
said that if we need to consult with individuals, the steps that we have taken
around energy management, we can move into consultant mode. She said that
we have come a long way with facilities management.

Craig said that he is not worried that we are going to go backwards. Gail said
that we paid extra for some of Aramark® services. She felt that we would be no
worse off if we needed to consult.

Dick said that we would invite Roger and Charlie to the next Board meeting to
explain the Repairs and Maintenance Details listed in Marian® PowerPoint.
Butch Estey asked about the parking lot striping for the high school and asked if
it was paid for with student parking fees.

Marian said that in the case of CVHS it may reflect more paving than striping.
Arthur asked of per student counts and costs with the ATC programs.

Craig said that of the 56 courses that the ATC offers, Conant offers 5 and
Mascenic offers 4. Automotive and Building Trades are the primary. Craig said
that we might save on buying the building for automotive rather than send our
students out. We have accounting courses that all offer. He questioned if the
relationship was worthwhile.

Dick said that this deserves much discussion. There is an admission that the
ATC cooperation is not working. There is an inequity in the relationship. Dick
agreed that we needed to note and act on this.

Craig said that we are doing all of the hosting.

Mary Allen said that we got a lot of money to get that building. To look at
breaking apart a regional ATC would need to be studied. The conversation
needs to take place and costs shared.

Dick referenced the ConVal School District SAU Office Staff (See Attachment #
9). He said that due to one staff member on long-term medical leave, the SAU
has not yet seen a fully functional SAU office.

Arthur Knight said that two positions are now duplicated due to the hiring of an
Human Resource person.

Marian said that the data position produces and disseminates data to the DOE,
Department of Revenue etc. The Data Collection person also supports the
facilities manager. The other piece is that the HR Director will need HR support
around benefits and day-to-day operations. ConVal is a $42 million dollar
organization. She does not feel that we are over staffed at all.

Arthur said that if we are reducing everywhere because of reductions in
enrollment it seems that we need less support staff at the SAU.

Dan Harper said that the HR position was covered by the previous
Administration. Now we ask that new Administrative team to be out in the
buildings. Arthur said that he supported the HR position but felt that there was a
duplication in efforts.

Craig said that he trusts that Dick would take the same position next year to
assure that all of the resources are being utilized. He felt that it would take some
time.



Bart supported that in terms of the transaction volume, he felt that the number of
people that report to individuals is right. He does not feel that it is grossly
overstaffed.

Dick Bergeron next referenced the proposed Reduction In Force (RIF) (See
Attachment #10)

Tom restated to say that if a Para is leaving a 1:1 position in the elementary
school that had seniority and there was an opening somewhere else, this Para
could move there.

Dick said that if he was a K teacher for 11 years, certified in SpEd, and there is a
proposal for a SpEd teacher, your seniority in your category is the entire piece.
Dick said that he has never heard this separation with the categories.

Dick said that multi-age exists in Dublin and Temple. They recommend in third
and in fourth in Hancock and K/1 at FES.

Dan asked if this was something you do because you have two classrooms that
are so small that you combine them or is it a good thing to do.

Dan asked the benefits of combining classrooms.

Dick Bergeron said that in an ideal world, multi-age decisions should not be
driven by economics. In ConVal, the viability of classrooms is up for discussion
because of class size. We are uniquely connected to our local schools. The
benefits, among some, are that you bring a viewpoint that students are seen as
individuals with strengths and weaknesses. | think about what you do and don®
know rather than your grade as a teacher. | can group accordingly, according to
instructional needs. In addition, a multi-age approach allows students to act as
mentors. There is a social connection. Itis a way to look at how a teacher might
look at individual students with individual needs. The teacher would need to
acquire a set of skills about assessment. Teachers accept the fact that there
isn@a set set of skills to look at. We know that students learn more from their
peers than from their teachers. The issue is to provide our teachers with the
resources.

Stewart Brock asked for clarification that Dick was not in favor of multi-age at the
onset of his hiring.

Dick said that the community stopped supporting the multi-age approach that he
worked in at one point. It needs to be supported because it is system that needs
training and is not intuitive. It does not come naturally to everyone. He
absolutely favors multi-age teaching.

Stewart then asked about training and support. He said that he was concerned
that teachers are trained and taught one way that it will take some time to get it
right.

Dick said that there are constraints. If he has a building with nine students in one
grade level and seven in the other he would like to consider combining. The
options are then limited. We will entertain the decision with each Administrator.
Craig said that the first reaction to think this way was the low class size. He
asked if we took PES that has full classes and try multi-age to see the outcome.
Dick said that in that situation, one would hope that this request would come from
the building administrator rather than the Superintendent handing it down. He



said that it is in part driven by testing and the judgment of how students do on
those tests.

Linda Potter said that through her experience in the Harrisville (Keene) district
that it was a wonderful opportunity. Students achieve an environment that is
often less in stress because of the environment. She said that because of
various levels, teachers already differentiate when they teach.

Don Johnson said that by bringing the training on board, it can be opened up to
other teachers that might desire it for the future.

Mary Loftis said that Dublin has a successful tradition of having a multi-age
classroom.

Dan Harper questioned the projected numbers at PES and why a teacher was
not eliminated. The response was that the student projection for K was only that
arrived at by @ollingCthe existing families in the school. Traditionally, many
more appear in August to attend school in the fall.

Gail said that we have a long history in this district of having combined
classrooms.

Tom said that because of parity in the schools and in education that additional
information be supplied.

Stewart Brock said that FES did not have a good experience with combined
classrooms.

Dick said that we are now open to general discussion of next steps. We will
come back to the Board with monthly reports.

Dick described the process of the reductions in Para-professionals.

Multi-age would mean the reduction of a teacher. GBS, FES, SMS will reduce by
one teacher.

Marian reminded everyone that the enroliments will be reviewed monthly.

Linda Potter said that previously when looking at the model, we moved to a
weighted model that depended on the studentsQiisability. This year, for the first
time, Linda said that she accesses the student® files to access different
information. She could now base decisions on actual hours required.

There is a SpEd reduction and Para also at AES.

Dick next referenced the attachment titled ®ig Issue Board AgendasOQ(See
Attachment #11)

Beverly asked about the January 8" agenda item of Middle School
ProgrammingO Dick said that they will come together to discuss the very
different middle schools that each are so proud of.

Craig asked what we should tell people about the budget. Tom said that we
should say that we don®have a number yet.

Stewart said that immediately following this meeting that Mary Allen, Dick and he
will meet to formulate a press release.

Bart said that we should say what took place which is that we looked hard at
staffing etc. Putting a number out there is high risk.



Tom asked Ray if he saw changes and/or needs with regard to technology. Ray
said that he doesn®have any comments yet.

Bart said that we can say that it seems to me that we have a good handle on
what the negatives might be. For example, heating, retirement etc. He felt that
we were in good shape.

Marian said that she feels having gone through this process that this process is
better than the previous way we have attacked in the past. She said there is still
a lot of work to be done but felt we were in good shape as a starting point.

Tom said that the week of the 17" Budget should next meet. Stewart asked that
this be made apart of the next Board meeting. Tom said that we could build in
one hour or so of updates on the budget.

Marian said that the initial vision for the Arts Enrichment Program was to connect
kids to local enrichment resources. It has evolved to something different. Itis a
bit more restrictive. We have reduced the positions that were there and put in its
place $50K to reestablish the community connections. She said that the general
idea was that we were feeling that the bulk of the money was spent on the
positions that were implementing the program rather than the program itself.
Beverly asked who at the elementary level would make sure that things would be
carried out.

Marian said that the teaching principals would work in conjunction with the art
and music teachers along with the SAU to implement.

Don Johnson said that he would oversee working with staff to ensure it took
place.

Marian said that the point is that the dollars currently budgeted are going more to
staff than to the activities. We are attempting to bring the program back to what it
was intended to do and perhaps more.

Marian said that when this program began, we did not have administrative
assistants in the small schools to make this happen, and we do now.

Bart said that the question is who is going to manage this new competition for
resources. He asked who will decide the process.

Don restated that he would oversee with the principals to make this happen.
Craig asked if we could increase the amount of money to provide opportunities
by the decrease in redirecting funds. The reply was that this was true.

Marian said that it was not about the individuals running the programs right now.

Tom said that he really appreciates the work that the administrative team has
done to bring us where we are today. He said that it was outstanding.

Marian said that historically, District Meeting has taken place in March. We can
change that date to March, April, or May. She asked if anyone was interested in
moving it for the next fiscal process. If we had the vote in May, we would have a
better understanding of what our balances are. In addition, Peterborough, our
biggest contributor, votes in May. She asked if any were interested in pursuing
that so that the SAU could research this and determine the process.



Craig said that he does not feel that we should align with Peterborough. We
should not get diluted with other politics and zoning.

Marian said that the reasons for the proposed change have to do with stand
alone, school district voting. The ability to know where we are further on is an
asset.

Gail Cromwell said that the real spin is if Peterborough is the dog wagging the
tail. She said that she is not interested.

Craig said that if we are going to change that we should be completely different.

Bart said that the Selectmen® Advisory Committee is interested in revisiting the
Articles of Agreement. They are zeroed in on Article 5. It is the article that
allows the moving around of students. There are some that want to make it more
flexible and others want to make it tighter.

Tom said that the ADM is the second part. We currently use two-year old data
and we have the ability to use more current data. The impact on the district is
being reviewed.

Dick thanked the entire team. He said that it has been a terrific process. He said
that benefits will continue to be seen.

Arthur Knight moved to adjourn today®@ meeting at 2:18 p.m. Mary Loftis
second. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



